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Strategic Report
NATURE, OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES:
The membars present their report and the audiled financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2016.

Lagal atatus

The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Educalion Act 1992 for tha purpose of
conducting Brockenhurst Collage. Tha College is an exempt charity for the purposes of Part 3 of the
Charitias Act 2011,

Misalon
The College Vision and Core Purpose Is to help paople maka the most of their lives through learning.
The Cellage Core Values ara:

That learning has the power to unlock the potential of each Individual
A belief in educalional and soclal Inclusien

Wa cara about people

We commit lo unequivocal excallence in all we do

That the future should be embracad through crealivity and innovation

- s s =

Public Benafit

Brockenhurst College is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charilies Act 2011 and is regulated by
the Depariment for Educalion as Principal Ragulator for all FE Corporations in England. The members of
the Governing Body, who are trustees of the charily, are disclosed on page 16,

In setling and reviewing the College's strategic objectives, the Governing Body has had due regard for the
Charity Commission's guidance on public banafit and particularly upon Its supplementary guidance on the
advancement of educalion. The guidance sels oul the requirement that all organisations wishing to ba
recognised as charities must demonsirate, explicilly, that thelr aims are for the public banafit.

In delivering its mission, the College provides the following identifiable public benafits through the
advancemaent of aducalion:

High-quality teaching

Widening participation and tackling social exclusion
Excellant emplaymant racord for studants

Strong student support systems

Links with amployars, Industry and commerce.

- & & & @

Implamantation of strategic plan

In June 2015 the College adopted a stratagic plan for the period 1 August 2015 to 31 July 2018. This
siratagic plan includes proparty and financial plane. The Corporation monitors the parformance of the
College against these plans, The plans are reviewed and updaled each year, The College’s key priorities
are:

« High-quality ouleomes

=« High-guality learning
« Suslainability and growth
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Each key priority has a number of largels dataling how each priority will be achlevad. College
departmental objectives have been set lo link directly with the achievement of the overall College

objectives,
The Collage's specific objectives for 2015/16 and achievement of those objectives are set out below.

Strategic Report (continued)

s Recruitment of 2,725 16-18 students against a target of 2,709 (2014/15 achleved 2,785 against a
targat of 3,080)

+ Total income of E21.1m in 2015/16 against a target of £22.0m (£21.4m in 2014/15)

+  Delivary of 85% of the College's SFA fundad Adult Skills Budget (ASB) larget of £2.07m (95% in
2015/186)
Recruitment of 114 overseas students = this was below the target of 120
Successiul compliance with bank loan covenants at the year-end

Financlal objectives

Following deterioration in tha Collega's financial results in 2013/14, the College developed a recovery plan
which was formally agreed by the Corporation on 2 December 2014. The recovery plan includes a
substantial cost base savings exercise to rebalance the Collega's budget and reposition it to support the
strateglc priority of sustainability and growth. The Skills Funding Agency (SFA) has been closely involvad
in the monilering of the recovery plan, including regular performance indicator tracking, and continues to
follow the College's progress.

The Collage has continued to be supported by its main lender, Barclays Bank, Loan covenants have baan
ranagotiated based upon achievement of the financlal recovery plan.

Thae key financial objeclivas of tha racovery plan relaling to 20156/16 are as follows:

« Compliance with the College's bank covanants relating to Debt Service Cover (avallable cashflow
compared to debt sarvicing costs) and Operational Gearing (leval of borrowings compared to
Adjustad Operating Surplus)

+ Improvement in the College’s SFA Financial Health rating of “Inadeguate” in 2014/15 to
“Satiafactory” In 2015/16

+ Operaling surplus of £220,000 in 2015/16

The Collage's Debt Service Cover ratio is 208% (covanant minimum raquiremant 100%) and Operational
Gearing Leval Is 471% (covenant maximum is 500%). The Callega's bank covenants hava therefora baan

mat for 201616,

The SFA Financial Health Rating criteria were amended in 2015/16 and are now based upon:
« Earnings bafore Interest, Depraciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) as a percentage of income
= Borrowings as a parcentage of incoma
« Current Ratio (short term assals as a percentage of short term liabllitias)

The College has achieved a score of 120 and therefore altained a rating of *Satisfactory” for the yaar.

The key financial recovery plan objeclives relating to covenant compliance and baing ratad as finanaially
salisfaciory by tha SFA have tharefore been achieved.

Tha College has continued to successfully Implement of a series of cost reduction initiatives. Howavar, the
shorifall in incema against budget for the year has resulted in a daficit of £399,000 (before FRS102
pension adjusiments). Whilst this is balow the targat set in the recovery plan, there is now greater focus on
the College's operating results and cashflow which are more effectively represented through the key
financial measures of EBITDA and Operaling Cashflow.
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Strategic Report (continued)
Parformance indicators

Tha SFA has Implementad a system of performance measures for colleges, “FE Cholces”. The College is
monitorad against the following measures within the Framewaork:

Success Rates
Learner destinaticns
Learnar viaws
Employar views

The Callege is commitled to observing the importance of the measures and indicators within the
Framework and is monitoring outcomaes,

In addition and as part of the Recovery Plan, a seres of Financlal and Quality based performance
measuras were agread and shared with the Corporation and the SFA, and maonitorad through the year.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Financlal results
Yoor anded Yaar anded
31 July 2016 3 July 2015

£'000 £'000

Talal incoma 20,361 21,444
Staff costs (12,401) (12.996)
% of Tolal Incoma 60.9% 60.6%
Mon stall cosla (8,564) (8,934)
Surplus/({Daeficit) (604) (484)
% Income -1.0% =2.3%
Add back:
Dopreciation 894 830
Intarast and other finance cosls 419 199
Releases of government capilal granis {143) (171)
EBITDA G666 374

{Earinga bafora Intarast, Tax, Deprecialion and

Amortisation)

The College saw a 5% reduction in total income in tha year, being mainly the result of a dacrease in
funding from Its main funding bodias, the Educalion Funding Agency (EFA) and the SFA. This reflactad
raductions in student numbers, both 16-18 A-lavel and vocational students, and also apprentices.

In response to the funding reduction, the Collega continuad to Implament a poliey of focussed cost control,
with a 5% raductlon In staff costs mirroring the fall In revenue. At 80,8% of total income, the staff costs
ratlo Is very much in line with seclor best practice.

The financlal matric of Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depraciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) has recently
been adopted by tha Collage in response to the requirements of its key financial slakehclders, namely the
SFA and Its loan providers, Barclays Bank. Key criteria of the SFA Financial Haalth Rating ara EBITDA as
a parcentage of income and EBITDA as a percentage of borrowings, and lkewise one of the College's
bank covenans is Adjustad Operating Surplus (EBITDA) as a parcentage of ils borrowings. The Collega’s
EBITDA increased In the year by 78% to E666,000 reflecting strong cost control offsatling the reduction in
total incoma,
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Strategic Report (continued)

Depreciation increased in the year as a result of the College's investment in its “Exceptional Student
Experlence” in the form of a culling adge Intranet and student analylics system developed in partnership
with IBM,

Interest and other finance costs comprise loan and overdraft interest of £209,000 (£159,000 in 2015) and
pension finance costs of £210,000 (£40,000 in 2015).

The College has net assets of 8,480,000, excluding the defined benefit pension obligations (2014/15 -
£8,820,000), Net assets fall to nat liabilities of £250,000 onca the pension obligations are taken into
necaunt,

Tangible fixed asset additions during the year amounted to £3,025,000, baing the College's investment in
a new Sclence, Technology, Engineering and Maths (STEM) Centre on its main Brockenhurst campus.
The bullding came into use In September 2018 and was almost entirely funded by a grant from the M3
Local Enterprise Parlnership.

Galng Concern

The financial statements have baen praparad on the going concern basis, which the Corporation believas
to be appropriate on tha basls set out below,

During 2015/16 the bank has confirmed its willingness to continue its support of the College subject to its
implementing and delivering the ongelng financial recovery plan and the College meeling its loan
covenanis,

Projected cash flow Information has been prepared for the period ending twelve months from the date of
the approval of these financial statements. This indicates that the Collage will have a maximum cash
raquirement of £1.5m during March 2017. The bank has confirmed that it is willing to renew the Collage's
overdrafl facilities at a lavel which will be sufficient o meat this short-term peak requirement.

On the basis of the College's ongoing recovary plan, the Corporation are salisfled that the covenants will
ba mat for the year to 31 July 2017 and that therefore the loan facility and overdraft should be avallable to
the College for at least the next 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statemants.

Treasury policies and objectives

Treasury management Is the management of the Collage's cash flows, its banking, monay market and
capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associaled wilth those activilies; and the
pursuit of oplimum performance consistent with those risks.

Tha College treasury management policy is included within its Financial Regulations. Short-term borrawing
for temporary revenue purposes is autherised by the Accounting Officer. Such arrangements are
rastricled by limits in the Financial Memorandum of the SFA/EFA. All othar borrowing requires tha
autherisation of the Cerporation and shall comply with the requirements of the Financial Memorandum of
tha SFA/EFA,

Cash flows and llquidity

The £5,038,000 cash inflow from operating activilies in 2015/16 (2014/16 £421,000) largaly reflacts the
deficit of EB09,000, offsat by the increase in creditors of £3,351,000, decrease in dablors £824,000 and the
depraciation charge of £995,000, The overall cash position increased by £1,402,000 In the year reflacting
an operaling cash inflow of £5,039,000, offset by capital investment of £2,032,000 and loan repayments
and Interast payable of E707,000.
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Strategic Report (continued)

The College generated an aperaling cashflow inflow of £6,039,000 in the year and had a cash balance of
£1.125,000 at the end of July. During 2015/2016 the liquidity of the College benefitted from timing of the
capital grant funding relating to the new STEM centre which opened in September 2016. Glven thal
aubstantially all funding was recelved prior to 1 Augusl 2016, and there remain final slage payments to be
made in 20168/17, this will reduce the liquidity of the College during this financlal year. A 12-manth
cashilow forecast covaring 2016/17 indicates that the College will therafore require an overdralt facility of
£1.5m In March 2017, reflecting both the profila of EFA funding and the timing of the final STEM Centre
capital payments. The College has an overdralt in place of £750,000. This will be extended to £1.6m for
the months of February 2017 to April 2017 to nddress the forecast maximum overdrall raquirements.

CURRENT AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE

Student funding

In 2015/16 the Collage has deliverad activity that has produced £14.9 million in EFA and SFA main
allocation funding (2014/15 = £15.6 milllon) Including adult-relatad aclivily.

Student achievements

18-18 yoar olds

The majority of full-time studants are aged 16-18, Most of these students lake level 3 courses — ASJ/A-
loval and BTEC programmes. The College has consistanlly achieved pass rates well above national
averages for sludents aged 16-18 in further education and tertiary colleges. Overall achisvement rates at
1818 show the Collega sits above the provider group average for the pravious year.

Adult Learnars

The success rate on classroom based courses is agaln above provider group averages. They significantly
improved in 2012/2013 and these improved rates have been maintainad for the last thrae years.
Framework achlevement rates on apprenticaship programmes have bean maintained and both overall and
timely achievements are above national banchmarks.

Currisulum developmants
Tha College has continued the developmant of its offer at all levels of learning.

Waork is underway to move towards full implementation of reformed A-levels and vocaticnal qualifications,
as well as preparing for a new intake of learners with a different grading system for GCSE. The first cohort
of revisad AS completed in 2018, with results that held up well against the previous qualification.

The College offers a very wide range of programmes for adults with parlicular growth In apprenticeships
and provision for tha unemployed in recent years. Apprenticeships have largely raplaced NVQ provision In
most curriculum areas though individual learners are able to follow an NVQ programmé or equivalent if an
apprenticaship is not appropriata. Apprenticeships are offered in an incraasing range of occupalional areas
with new frameworks introduced In September 2014 in Enginearing and IT. The College is a major
provider for Job Centre Plus in Southamplon as well as the New Foresl. The College delivers a large
aommunity-based programme for adulls with learning difficulties and disabilities and also eommunity-
based Literacy and Numeracy. The Collage has maintained a significant adult learning programme fundad
through learner fees, The Collage has rationalised its higher education provision, focusing on specialisl
provision in Care and Early Years to supplement existing teacher training provision.

The Collage has continued to devalop its Intarnational work and recrulted over 110 fee-paying international
students In 2015/16. The Collage remains a Confucius Classroom, a prestigious program which supports
schools and eollagas In strengthening their Chinese language and cullure programme. Brockenhurst
College is the only Further Education Callege in the country to hold this honour.
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Strategic Report (continued)

The Collage's key targets are linked directly to the priority areas as set out in the College’s stralegic plan.
Targetls relating to curriculum delivery includa the following:

. All learning araas to be at least Grade 2; 20% achleving Grade 1

. 8% of dalivery/assassmant via eBrock

. Application conversion increase : 2% from 71%

- 1% improvemant across all measures in and of course survey from 2015 baseline

- 1% improvemant in overall employer satisfaction from 20156 baseline

. Education and Training outcomes — target 1.5% improvement from 2015 baseline

«  Apprenticeship outcomes ~ target 2% Improvament in timely and overall outcomes from 2015 baseline
. 1% Improvement in retention (E&T) from 2015 baseline

. 50% of level 3 courses abovae average performance on national value-added measure

* 65% alignment with LEP priorities

. 95% of leavers progressing Into further study, employmant or apprenticeship

s 2% increase above nalional rales on achievement in L2 Maths & English courses, with same increase
in high grades at GCSE

Capital Projacis

IBM

In parinership with IBM, during 2014/15 the College developed an enhanced leaming programme ‘the
Exceptional Student Experience’, This enables the College to gain deeper insight into student needs and
learning styles, and use this information to shape a more immersive aducational exparience, from
application to graduation. The College uses IBM predictive analytics and soclal portal sclulions (eBrock
Connact), underpinned by a cloud platform, to shape a more engaging and personalised student
experience, The IBM projact want live in September 2015.

Sciance, Tachnology, Engineering and Maths (STEM) Centre

Working In partnarship with local employers, IBM and Southampton Univarsity, the College was auccessiul
in securing £3.9m of capital funding from the M3 Local Enterpilsa Partnership (LEP) to bulld a state-of-the-
art STEM centre on the Brockenhurst campus, Construction commenced in November 2015 and was
made available o students in Seplembar 2016, on tima and on budget.

Paymant parformance
The College policy is to pay all invoices that have been authorised for payment on tha 22" day of the
month following the month of invoice, as required under the ongoing Recovary Plan, This palicy Is

displayed on all official College orders. Tha Collage incurred no interest charges in respect of late paymant
for this period,

Post-balance sheat events

Barclays Bank has agreed to provide a temporary extension te the College's overdraft facility which will be
increased from £750,000 to £1.5m for the months of Fabruary to April 2017 inclusive.
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Strategic Report (continued)

Area-Based Reviews

At the start of the year the government announced a serles of “Area-Based Reviews® which are part of a
natlonal Initiative which seeks to look at the shape of all post-16 education and training across the UK and
how well this fits with local aconomic and educational neads. The College particlpated in the first wave of
these raviews as part of the Solent LEP area which covered the local authorily areas af Hampshire County
Council (part of aren), Isle of Wight, Portsmouth and Southampton. The Solent LEF Area Raviaw resulted
in the following outcame recommendation for the Collage:

“Brockenhurst Collage to davelop and exlend lts collaborative shared services partnership with
Bournemouth & Poole College and to establish an appranticeships joint ventura.”

In response to this recommandation, the College has commiasloned the AoC lo provide consullancy
support regarding the feasibility and implementation of an Apprenticeship Joint Venture with Bournemouth
and Poole College. Brockanhurst College has been awardad transition funding of £50,000 for the project.

RESOURCES
The College has various rasources that it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic objectives.

Tangible resources Include the main college site and operating equipment used to support the currculum
delivary. The net back value of these assets as at 31 July 2016 was £22.9 million (31 July 2015 - £20.8
millien), having increased In the year due to the construction of the new STEM Canlre.

Financial

The Collage has £8.5 million (2014/15 - £8.8 million) of net assets before defined banefit obligations.
These Include long-term debt of £3.8 million (2014/15 - £4.6 million). Following an increase in the year of
£2.8 millien the Collage's defined benefit pansion obligations now stand at £8.7 million (2014/15 - E5.9

million).

Paople
The College employs 340 (2014/15 = 355) people (expressed as full-ime equivalents), of whom 172
(2014/15 = 199) are taaching staff.

Raputation

The College has a good reputation locally and nationally. Maintaining a qualily brand Is essential for the
Collage's success at altracting students and external relationships.

Paga 8




w Brockanhuirst College
Ay

Strategic Report (continued)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES:

The College has undartaken further work during the year to develop and embed the system of internal
eontrol, Including financial, operational and risk management which is designed to protect the Collaga's
assets and reputation, Based on the sirategic plan, the Senior Leadership Team Key Performance
indicator (SLT KPI) Group undertakes a comprehensive review of the risks to which the Callege Is
exposed. Thay identify systams and procedures, including specific preventable aclions which should
mitigate any potential impact on the College. The Internal controls are then implemented and the
subsequent year's appraisal will review their effectiveness and progress against risk mitigation actions.

In addition to the annual raview, the SLT KPI Group will also consider any risks which may arlse as a
result of a new area of work belng undertaken by the Collage. During each year members of the SLT KPI
Group will raview the risk register on a quarlerly basis and update the register when necassary.

A risk reglster s maintained al the Collage level which is reviewed termly by the Audit Commiltea. The
risk register identifies the key risks, the likellhood of these risks occurring, their potential impact on the
College and the aclions being taken to reduce and miligale the risks. Risks are priorilised using a
consistent scoring system. The risk management process is supporled by risk managemant training 1o
raise awaranass of risk throughout tha Caollege.

Outlined below is a description of the principal risks as identified by the SLT KPI Group that may affect the
College. Not all the factors are within the College's conlrol. Other faclors besides those listed below may
alsa adversaly affact the College.
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1

Failure to address structural
daficlt

Mitigation ; i

« Finaneial Racovary Plan preparad by Senior Management Team
with asslatance from Interim Financae consultant

+ College restructuring implemented during 2014/16 and embadded
inte 2015/16 budgel

« Monthly Finance & Standards Commiitae meatings to review and
meniter implamentation of Financlal Recovery plan

+ Rasponsive cost plan In place {o react lo changes in incoma

2 | Failure 1o ensure financial + Financial reporting systems and eontrols strengthened and
information and controls are improvad following overhaul by Interim Financial cansultant
sufficlantly robust to allow + Monthly Finance & Standards Commiltee maaetings to monitor
Govarnors and SMT to make implementation of new College financlal systems
informed declsions « Audit commiltee to review Internal Auditors raporting of Financial

systoms and controls

+ Audit Committes to review Senlor Management and Auditors’
reporting of WESS parformance against financlal information,
systams and control KPls

3 | Inlight of the recently # Active participation in the review process and steering groups
announced "Area Reviews™: comprising Chairs of governors, Local Enterprise Partnerships
« Failure lo prepare, fully (LEPs) and local autherities, FE & Sixth Form Collage

angage with and influence Commission
the most effective outcome | « Preparation of comprehensive *Area Review Information Pack”
for our key stakeholders, gelling out key College data (financial, curriculum, quality)

+ Loss of autonomy to = Sel out clearly and persuasivaly the preferred key options to
develop and deliver support the bast interests of our learnars and community
aducation and training In
ihe best interesis of our
learnars and community, —

4 | Failure to forecast and daliver | « Maintain robust procedure for student racruitment including targats
learnar numbar targets for student numbers

« Efficlent admissions system modelled with curriculum mix of F/T to
P/T studenls

« Ensure start of year process operates as smoothly as possible

s Maintain robust student record system

s Increase liaison with schools

« Daveloping a compelling argument for students to come to Brock

s Distribution of quality prospectus

s Waakly Individualised Leamer Record (ILR) reporting

= Monitoring class sizes

s Regular student application reponts and forecasts

« Davalopment of Proparty Stratogy

« Implemantation of 'keeping warm' strategy post interview

+ |[BM project ‘Exceptional Student Experiance’

5 | Fallure to manage change « Davelop and implemant change activities
affactively, including Impact of | « Staff awareness and behaviour change activity
curriculum changes, major + Davelopment of Changa Management Plan for each key aclivity.
systems projects (IBM) and « Contingency planning appropriate processes and lagislation
major capital developments + Change managament consultation and training

+ Davelopment of Project Managemant skills

& | Fallure to maintain cash flow | « Rigorous cash flow budget salting

in accordance wilh Financlal
Hualth Ralings

+ Implement rigorous payment and cash collection procedures
¢ Produce waakly aash flow forecast

+ Implemant Treasury Management policy

s Intarnal Audit review of deblors

« Produce key indicators on deblor days
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Risk

Mitigation

Failura to meet Collage
income targets for new
markaets and products

= Developing and reviewing International Strategy

« Developing and raviewing Local Communily Strategy

= Davaloplng Commarcial exportise

s Davaloping robust business cases for new ventures including
financlal analysis

« Prudent and accurate budget setling

Failure to develop existing
markats

= Daveloping and raviewing 16-18 Stralegy
« Developing and raviewing International Strategy
» Davaloping pre-Apprenticeship, Apprenticeship and Tralneeship

programs
+ Developing and reviewing plans to maximise income from all

oxlsting markets

Fallure to deliver plan lo
mitigate Public Funding
reductions

« Dovelopment of new Income Streams and Full Cost Income
streams

+ Development of Fund Raising Strategy

« Rigorous budget seiting

« Financial forecast sansitivily analysis

+ Timely Management Accounts including prompt kay parformance
indicators

« Benchmarking with other Collages

10

Fallure to recruit International
sludents including In-country
delivary, changes in visa
raguirements and to retain
highly trustad status with the
UKBA

= Davelopmant of International Stratagy Including key staff

= Lobbying support through AoC and government contacls

= Moniloring Financial Forecasts

+ Utllise UKBA expertise consullancy sarvices

« Timely Management Accounts including key perfermance
indicators

= Audit of International student anralmant and altendance
procadures

1

Failure to maintain of improve
Success Rales for all groups
of learnars

s Rigorous advice and guldance during enrolment process

= Smooth start of the year procass

s ldentification of ‘at risk’ students within three weeks of start of
course

= Pravision of limaly and accurate detailed data {o ensure
accountablity at all lavals

= Timaly monilaring of ratantlon and other key parformance
indicators by all stall

+ Usa of Insight management information system by all Curriculum
Managers

» Monitoring results and achievement through Self-Assessment and
action planning at stali and daparimental lavels

= Rigorous Self-Assessment Review (SAR) and Quality
Improvement Development Plan (QIDP) process

+ Monthly reports reviewed at SLT KPI Group meeling

12

Failure to achieve Good or
Oulstanding OFSTED
inapactions

= Training Sessians hald for all stalf and Governors to ensure
awaranesas of belng preparad

+ Working Draft SAR preparad by mid-Septembar

* Introduce Mock Inspaclion Week to ensure the College Is
praparéd

= Dralt SAR submitted to Governors in Novamber

= Ragular SLT KPI Group maatings

« Aclive OFSTED Inspactor in Collaga managamant
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Risk

| Mitigation

Fallura to recruit quality staff

|« Recruitment and sslection procedures

+ Pay Paolicy including regular review of pay rates

+ Benchmarking with other Colleges

+ Rasource planning

= Utilising the appropriate recruitment mechanisms e.g. intarnational
ataff

_—

14

Fallure to ensura that the starl
of year procass runs officiently

s Produce plan for start of year activilies

= Ensure relevanl systams are up lo date

s Ensura staff are trained to use relevant systems and processes

« Produce timatable for complation of plan and eommunicate to all
staff

« Davelop process for providing advice and guidance lo sludents
impacted by nead to pursue allernativa options

15

Impact of Collaga restructure
an high quality teaching and
laarning and support for
learnars

. g.:mllnua 1o give full scrutiny to the implementation of the Collega
IDP

« Ensure full regard is taken with the restructure to maintain strong
educational provision

« Monitor closely quality KPls

+ Ensure Governors continua to give full scrutiny to quality
Improvemant

+ Ensure College maintains Ofsted readiness

» Establish and appoint two new senior middla managaer posts:
Director of Quality and Learning and Director of Learners

Failure to plan and develop
existing resources and
accommaodation through lack
of Capital Invastment

« Updaling Property strategy

» Resourcing plans linked to curriculum requirements
= Rigorous budgaet salling process

=« Fundraising stratagy developad

« Self-Assessment Raview (SAR) process

17

Fallure to maximise incoma
generated from College
activities

+ Rigorous budgal satling

« Ragular monitering and corrective aclion

» Regular financlal forecasts with sensitivity analysis and
conlingancy planning

« Clear awnarahlp of incoma targels

« Robust financial ragulations and procedures

18

Failure to deliver afficlancy
savings

+ Rigorous budgat satting

« [dantifying key strategles including procurement and shared
service aclivities

+ Ragular review of all departmental cosis

+ Regular monitoring of class sizes

« Ensuring monthly management accounts is provided timely and
accurataly

« Ragular financial forecasts with sensitivity analysis

+ Curriculum Planning is undertaken

s Implemant Restrucluring Plan

19

Failura to achiave tha Bank
Covananis

+ Rigorous budgat salling
+ Ragular financlal forecasts with sensitivity analysis
« Incorporate projection within the Menthly Management Accounts

» Maintaining regular communication with the bank
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Strategic Report (continued)

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS

In line with other collages, Brockenhurst College has many stakeholders. These include:
Studants;

Education seclor funding bodies;

Staff;

Local employers (with specific links);

Local Authorilies;

Government Offices / Local Enterprise Partnerships;
The local community;

Othar Further Education institutions;

Trade unions;

Professional bodles,

- B W ® W O® B B = @

The College racognisas the importance of these relationships and engages in regular communication with
them through the College Internet site and by meetings.

Equal oppertunities and employment of disnblod parsens

Brockenhurst College is committed to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who learn and work here. We
raspect and value positively differences in race, gender, sexual orientation, disability, religion or bellef and
age. We strive vigorously to remave cenditions which place people at a disadvantage and wa will actively
combat bigotry. This policy is reseurced, implamented and monitored on a planned basis. The College's
Single Equality Scheme is published on the College's Internat site.

The Collega publishes an Annual Report and Equality Objectives to ensure compliance with all relevant
aquality legislation including the Equality Act 2010. The College undertakes equality Impact assessmants
on all new policles and procedures and publishes the results, Equality impact assessments are also
undertaken for axisting policies and proceduras on a prioritised basis.

The Callege is a 'Positive about Disabled' employer and has committad to the principles and objectives of
the Posilive about Disabled standard. The College considers all employment applications from disabled
persons, bearing in mind aptitudes of the individual concerned, and guarantees an interview lo any
disabled applicant who maels the assential crileria for the post. Whare an axisting employee bacomes
disabled, avery effert is made to ensure that employment with the College continues. The College’s policy
Is to provide training, career development and opportunities for promotion which, as far as possible, provide
Identical opportunitias to those of non-disabled employees.

Disability statemant

The College seeks to achieve the objectives sat down In the Disability Discrimination Act 1995 as amended
by the Spaclal Educalion Needs and Disability Act 2001 and 2006,

« As part of its accommodation sirategy the College updaled its access audit. Experis in this fiald
conducted a full access audit during 2006/07, and the results of this identified that 88.5% of the
Collage Is accessible lo paopla with disabililies.

« The College has an appointed Equal Opportunities & Diversity Co-ordinator, who provides
infarmation, advice and arranges support whare necessary for students with disabilities.

« The admissions policy for all students Is described in the College charter. Appaals against a
decision not to offer a place are dealt with under tha complaints policy.

« The Collega has made a significant investmant in the appointment of speclalist lecturers to support
students with leamning difficulties andior disabilities. There are a number of student support
assistants who can provide a varlety of support for learning. There is a continuing programma of
staff development to ansura the provision of a high level of appropriate support for students who
have learning difficultios and/or disabilities.
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« Spaclalist programmes are described in College prospectuses, and achievements ar recorded
and published in the standard College formal,

« Counsalling and welfara services are described In the College Student Guide, which s Issued to
students togather with the Complaints and Disciplinary Procedure at induclion.

Disclosure of Information to auditors
The membars who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are @ach
aware, thera |8 no relevant audit information of which the College's auditors are unaware, and each

member has taken all the steps that he or she cught to have taken to be aware of any relavant audit
infarmation and to establish that the Collage’s audilors are aware of that infarmation.

Approved by order of the mambers of the Corporation on 29 November 2016 and signed on its
behalf by:

= e
G Boards

Acting Chalr

Data:
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The College Is commilted to exhibiling bast
summary describes the manner in which the G
Governance Code (‘the Code”) ssued by the FRCF in June 2012. Its purposa is to help

accounts understand how the principles have baen applied.

In the epinion of tha Govarnors,
thay apply to the Further Educatlon Sector, and |

The Governing Body recognises that, as
particular duty lo observe

rasponsibililies, it takes account
Assaciation of Collages in Mareh 2015,

The Corporation

the highest alan

J&’ Brockanhust College
o i

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control

practice In all aspects of Corporate Governance. This
ollege has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
tha reader of the

the College mainly complies with the provisions of the Code in go far as
L has complied throughout the year ended 31 July 2016.

a body entrusted with both public and privale funds, it has a
dards of corporata govarnance at all imes. In carrying out its
of The Code of Good Govarnance for English Colleges issued by the

The Membare who servad on the Corporation during the year and up to the date of signalure of thia raport
ware as listed balow.

Clark's Note: The Board has classified all Members as 'External’ save for the Principal, and Staff and
Student Gavarnors.

It is tha Corporation's responsibility to bring independent judgement 1o bear on issues of strategy,
performance, resources and standards of conduct.

Governor Data of Torm of | Date of Status of Committaes Attendance
Appolntmant Office | Reslgnation | Appolntment | Served % 2015-2018
Mr M Bussell | July 2009 4 years Staff (Suppert) | Audit 100%
Last re-elactad Governance and | 100%
Dac 2014 Search — Chair
|- from 2014
Dr P Buller Dec 2007 4 yaars External Governance and
Last re-elecled Search — Chalr
Dac 2011 from Nov 20711-
Tarm of Office 2013, Vice-
anded Dec 2015 Chair from Nov
2013-2014
Financa and
Slandards
Capltal Project =
Chalr Dag 2013-
2014
Audit = Vice
Chalr from 2014
Mr A Foreman | June 2012 4 yoars External Audit = Vice 100%
Last ra-alactad Chair from 2013
June 2018 Chair from 2014
Mrs Z Karal MNov 2007 4 yaars Extarnal Employmaent 66.6%
Last re-elacted and Personnel —
July 2015 Vica Chair from
2014
Mr J Liu Oct 2012 d4years | May 2016 External Governance and | 50%
Search
= Capital Project | 50%
Mr K Marshall | Dec 2012 4 yaars Staff Employment 33.3%
{Teaching) and Personnal _ il
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (cont'd)

| Govarnor Date of Torm of | Date of Statusof | Committaes Attendance
ot Appointment | Office | Resignation | Appolntment | Servad %, 2015-2016
Mrs J Milena | Mar 2010 4 years Exlarnal Employment 100%
Last re-alactad and Personnal =
Dac 2013 Chalr fram Qgt
2011
Remuneration 100%
Vice Chair from
June 2013
Chair from 2014
Mrs D Roberis | Ex-officio Principal Governance and | 33.3%
Appointed Soarch
Sep 20006 Employmant G6.6%
ane Parsonnel
Financa and 100%
Standards
Capital Project | 33.3%
Dr C Swan Deac 2010 4 yonrs Exlernal Governance and | 68.6%
Last ra-alactad Saarch
Dac 2014 Finance and 100%
Standards
F Exlarnal Financa and 33.3%
Mr C Underhill | July 2013 4 yaars Pbeabrsl
Remunaralion 0%
Capital Project - | 100%
Chair from 2014
Mr D Yatos Mov 2000 4 yaars External Corporation = 100%
Last ra-alactad Chair fram Jul
July 2015 2011
Ramuneration = | 100%
Vica Chair from
Jun 2011-13
Govarnance and | 100%
Swearch
Employment 66.6%
and Parsonnal
Finance and 100%
Standards -
Chalr from Nov
2011
Capltal Project 100%
Mr S July 2014 4 years External Audit - Vice 100%
MacDonald Chair from Nov
20154,
M External Employment 100%
Mr G Bearde | Sept 2014 4 yaars el
Finance and 100%
Standards =
Vige Chair from
Nowv 2015 2
Extarnal Financa and 868.6%
Prof A Naill Sept 2014 4 yaars By
Capilal Project | 86.6%
' 4 yaars Extarnal Finance and 100%
Mr T Paarce | July 2015 ye okt
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (cont'd)

Govarnor Date of Tarm of | Dataof | Status of Committees Attandance

Appointmant Office | Resignation | Appeintment Servad | % 2015-2016
Mr James July 2015 4 yaars External Governance and | 100%
Hiley-Jonas Search

Employment 100%
and Peraonnel

Mrs Davina Dac 2015 4 yeara External Audit 100%
Hawking Employmant
and Paersonnal 100%
Miss J Hamill- | July 2015 1 yaar Student
Stowart (16-18)
Mrs J Blllings | Dec 2015 1 year Studant
(Adult)

The Corporation is provided with ragular and timely information on the ovarall financial performance of the
College together with other Informatien such as performance against funding targets, proposed capital
expenditure, quality matters and personnel-related matters such as health and safely and environmental
issuas, The Cerporalion meals at least once per tarm.

The Corporation conducls its business through a number of commilleas. Each committea has Terms of
Referance, which have baen approvad by the Corporation, These committees are Finance and Standards,
Capital Project, Remuneration, Governance and Search, Employment and Personnel and Audit. Full
minutes of all mastings, excep! those deemed Lo be confidential by the Corporation, are available from the
Clerk to the Corporation at Brackenhurst College, Lyndhurst Road, Brockenhurst, Hampshire, 5042 TZE,

The Clerk to the Corporation maintains a register of financial and parsonal intarests of the governors. The
register is available for inspection at the above addrass,

Govarnors as a Board are able to take independent professional advice on any malters concerning the
axarclse of their power and responsibilities. Such matters include advice on their lagal, accounting and
ragulating duties but exclude advice to individual Governors concerning thelr own respeclive personal
interasis in relation to the Corporation, A Governor who Intends to seek advice under this procadura must
give prior written notice to the Clerk and, on request, any advice which Is obtained under the procedure
must ba made available to all Governors, The cost of any other professional advice is not at the oxpense
of the Corporalion, Governors also have access to the Clerk to the Corporation, who Is responsible to the
Board for ensuring that all applicable procedures and regulations are complied with. The appointmant,
svaluation and removal of the Clark are matters for the Corporation as a whole.

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to Governors in a timely manner, prior to Board
meatings, Briefings are also provided on an ad hoc basis.

The Corporation has a strong and independent non-execulive element and no individual or group
dominates Its decision-making process. The Corporation considers that each of its Non-Exaculive
Membaers is independent of management and free from any business or other relationship which eould
matarially intarfare with the exercise of their Independent judgemant.

There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chalrman and Accounting Officer are
separate.

Faga 18




1@ freckenbist Collacge

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (continued)
Appointments to the Corporation

Any new appointmants to the Corporation are a matier far the conaideration of the Corporalion as a whole,
The Corporation has a Governance and Search Commitlee, consisting of seven Members of the
Corporation, which is responsible for the selection and nomination of any new Member for the
Gorporation’s consideration. The Corporation is responsible for ensuring that appropriate training Is
provided as required.

Membars of the Corporalion, save for Student Governors, are appointed for a tarm of offica not axceeding
faur years.

Ramunaration Committae

Throughout the year ending 31 July 2016, the Collage's Remuneration Commillee comprised five
Members of the Carporation. The Committae's responsibliities are to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration and benefits of the Accounting Officer and other senior post-holders. Detalls for
remunaralion for year anded 31 July 2016 are sel cut in Note 8 lo the financial statemants,

Audit Committea

The Audit Commiltes comprises four members of the Corporation (excluding the Accounting Officer and
Chair of the Board), Tha Committes operates In accardance with written Terms of Reference approved by
the Corporation. The Audit Committee Mambers in the last yaar weré:

Mr A Foreman  (Chalr)

Dr P Butler {tarm of Office endad Dac 2015)
Mr M Bussall

Mr 5 MacDonald

Mrs Davina Hawkins (from Dee 2015)

Tha Audit Commillae meats on a fermly basias and provides a forum far raporting by the College's internal,
reqularity and financial statements auditors, who have access o the Committea for Independent
discusslon, without tha presence of College management. The Committes also receivas and considers
reports from the Callege funding bodies as they affect the Collage's business,

The College's internal audilors review tha systems of Internal contral, risk management cantrols and
governance processes in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report their findings to management
and the Audit Commiitaa,

Management Is responsible for the implemantation of agread audit recommendations and internal audit
undertakas periodic follow-up reviews to ensure such recommendations hava boan implemantad.

The Audit Committee also advises thae Corporation on the appaintment of internal, regularity and financial
statemants auditors and their ramuneration for both audit and non-audit work as wall as reporting annually
io the Corporation,

Internal control

Scope of responsibliity

The Corporation is ultimately responsible for the College’s system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than aliminate the risk of failure to

achiave business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
matarial misstatement or loss.
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (cont'd)

The Corporation has delegatad the day-to-day rasponsibility to the Principal, as Accounting Officer, for
malntaining @ sound system of internal control thal supports the achievement of the Collega's policies,
alms and objeclives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assels for which she la persaonally
responsible, in accordance with the responsibllities assigned Lo her in the Financial Memorandum between
Brockenhurst College and the funding bedies. Sha s also responsible for reporting 1o the Corporation any
malarial weaknassas or braakdowns in internal control.

The purposa of the systern of intarnal control

The system of Internal conlrol Is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all
risk of fallure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not
gbsolute nssurance of effectiveness. Tha system of internal control is based on an ongolng process
designed to identify and pricrliise the risks to the achiavement of College policies, aims and abjectives, to
avaluate the likellhood of those risks being realised and the Impact should they be realised, and to manage
thern elficlently, effectively and economically. The system of Intarnal conlrol has been in place In
Brockenhurst College for tha year ended 31 July 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual report
and accounts.

Capacily lo handle risk

The Corporation has reviewed the key risks to which the College Is exposed together wilh the operating,
financlal and compliance contrals that have been implemented to miligale those risks, The Corporation is
of the view thal there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the College's
significant risks that has been In place for the period ending 31 July 2016 and up to tha data of approval of
the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the Corporation.

The risk and eontrol framawork

The systam of internal control Is based on a framework of regular management information, administrative
procadures including the sagregation of duties, and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular, it includes:

« comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewad and agreed by the
governing body

« regular reviews by tha governing body of periedic and annual financlal reports which Indicate
financial performance against foracasts
aelling targels lo measura financial and other performance
alearly dafined capital invasimant control guidalines
the adoption of formal project managemant disciplines, whare appropriate.

Brockenhurst Collags, al the request of its Audit Commiltes, employs the services of a third party intarnal
audit sarvice, The Southern Internal Audit Parinership, which operates in accordance with the
requiramants of the relevant funding bodies’ Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal audit service
is informad by an analysis of the risks to which the College Is exposad, and annual internal audit plans are
based on this analysis. The analysis of risks and the Internal audit plans are endorsed by the Corpaoration
on the recommandation of the Audit Committee. At minimum annually, the internal audit service providas
the Audit Commiltee and govarning body with a report on internal audit activity in the College. The raport
includes an independant opinion on the adequacy and effactiveness of the College's system of risk
management, conlrola and governance procasses.
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (cont'd)

Raviaw of effactivanass

As Accounting Officer, tha Principal has responsibility for raviawing the effecliveness of the system of
intarnal contral, Her review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by:

the work of the Intarnal auditors
ihe work of the execullve managers within the Collage who have responsibility for the
development and malntenance of the internal control framawork

« comments made by the College's financial statements audilors, the regularity auditors (for
collages in plan-led funding), and the appointed funding auditors (for colleges outside plan-lad
funding) in their management |etters and other reports.

The Accounling Officer has been advised on the implications of the rasult of her raview of the
affectiveness of the system of internal control by the Audit Commitlee, which oversees the work of the
internal auditor and other sources of assurance, and a plan lo address weaknessas and ensura
conlinuous Improvement of tha system is in place.

The senior managemant team receives repors setting out key performance and risk indicators and
considers possible control issues brought to their allention by early warning mechanisms, which are
embadded within the departments and reinforced by risk awareness tralning, The sanlor management
team and the Audit Commiltee also receive regular reports from Internal audit and other sources of
assurance, which include recommendations for improvement. Tha Audit Committea's role in this area s
confined to a high-level review of the arrangements for intarnal control. The Corporation's agenda includes
a regular flem for consideration of risk and control and receives reports thereon from the senior
management team and the Audit Committee. The emphasis is on oblaining the relevant degree of
assurance and nol merely reporting by exceplion. At its November 2016 meeling, the Corporatien carriad
oul the annual assassmant for the year ended 31 July 2016 by considering dacumantation from tha senior
managemant team and internal audit, and taking account of events since 31 July 2016

The Corporation has considerad Its responsibility to nolify the Skills Funding Agency of matarial irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with Skills Funding Agency lerms and conditions of funding, under the
financlal memorandum In place between the College and the Skills Funding Agency. As part of il
consideration the Corporation has had due regard to the requirements of tha financial mamorandurm.

Wa confirm, on behalf of the Corporation, that to the best of lta knowledge, the Corporation belleves It is
able to identify any material irragular or impraper use of funds by the college, or material non-compliance
with the Skils Funding Agency's terms and condiions of funding under the College's financial
memorandum. We further confirm that any Instances of materlal Iregularity, impropriety or funding non-
compliance discovarad to date have baen notified to the Skills Funding Agency.

Approved by order of the membars of the Carporation on 28 Nevember 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

Biamcﬂ:':_-l /—Eﬁ - Siginad:

G Boards D Robarts

Acting Chair Accounting Officer
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Governing Body’s Statement on the College’s Regularity, Propriety and
Compliance with Funding Body Terms and Conditions of Funding

The Corporation has considerad its responsibllity to nolify the Skils Funding Agency of material
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with Skills Funding Agency terms and conditions of funding,
under th financlal memorandum in place between the Collage and the Skills Funding Agency. As part of
aur considaration we have had due ragard to the requiremants of the financial memorandum.

Wae confirm on bahalf of the Cerporalion that after due enquiry, and to the besl of our knowladge, wa are
able to idantify any material irregular or Improper use of funds by the College, or material mn-::mmpllance
with the Skils Funding Agency's terms and conditions of funding under the Colleges financial
memaorandum,

We confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have beon
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the dale of this statement, these will ba notified to

tha Skills Funding Agancy.

mﬂﬂ@(@

G Baards

Acting Chair Accounting Officer
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Staternent of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation

Tha mambars of the Corporation are required to present audited financial statements for each financial
year,

Within the tarms and conditions of the Financial Memorandum agreed between Ihe funding agencles and
the Corporation of the Collage, the Corporalion, through its Principal, is raquired to prepara financial
statements for each financial year in accordance with the 2015 Statement of Recommended Praclice —
Accounting for Further and Migher Education and with the Accounis Direction for 20156/16 financial
statements issuad Jointly by the Skills Funding Agency and the Education Funding Agency, and which glve
a true and fair viow of the stale of affairs of tha College and the result for thal year.

In praparing the financial stalements, the Corporation is required ta:

salact suilable accounting policies and apply them consistently

+ make judgements and estimales that are reasonable and prudant

« siate whelher applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, subject lo any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements

« prapare financial statemants on the going concarn basis, unlass it Is inappropriate to assume that
the College will continua in operalion.

The Corporation Is alsa required o prepare an Operating and Financial Review which describes what It Is
trying to do and how it is going about it, including the legal and adminisirativa status of the Collage.

The Corporation is responsible for keeping proper accounting racords which disclose with reasonable
accuracy, at any lime, the financial position of the College, and which enable it to ensure that the financlal
statements are prepared in accordance with the relevant lagislation of incorporation and other relevant
accounting standards, It is responsible for taking steps that are reasonably open to it in order to safeguard
the assets of the College and to prevent and delect fraud and other irregularities.

The maintenanca and Integrity of the Collage website is the responsibility of the Corporation of the
Collage; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and,
accordingly, the auditers accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occuirred to th financial
atatements since they ware Initially presented on the website. Legislation In the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Members of the Corporation are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are applied for the
purposes Intanded by Parliament and that the financial transactions conform (o the authorities that govern
them. In addition they are responsible for ensuring that funds from the SFA/EFA are used only in
accordance with the Financial Memoerandum/Financial Agreement with the SFA/EFA and any othar
conditions that the relavant SFAJEFA may prescribe from tima to time. Members of the Corporation must
ansure that there are appropriate financial and management confrols in place In order to saleguard public
and other funds and to ensure they are used properly, In addition, members of the Corporation are
responsible for securing economical, efficient and effective management of the College’s resources and
axpendilure, so that the benefils that should be derived from the application of public funds by the
SFAJEFA ara not pul at risk.

Approvad by order of the members of the Corporation on 29 November 2016 and signed on its behalf by!

signed: G v

G Baards
Agting Chair
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Corporation of Brockenhurst College

Wa have audited the College financial statements (‘the financial statements”) of Brockenhurst Collage for
the yaar endad 31 July 2016 set out on pages 28 to 53. The financial reporting framework that has bean
applled In their preparation Is applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Acceplad
Accounting Practice) Including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standlard applicable in the UK and
Rapublic of lrefand,

This report is made solely to the Corporation, ns a body, In accordance with Article 22 of tha College's
Arlicles of Government. Our audit work has been undertaken so thal we might state to the Corporation, as
a body, those mallers we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To
the fullast extent permitted by law, we do not accapt or assume rasponsibililty lo anyone other than the
Corporalion, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective Responsibilities of tha Corporation of Brockenhurst Collage and Auditor

As explained more fully in the Statament of the Corporation’s responsibllities set out en page 23, the
Corporation Is responsible for the preparation of financlal statements which give a true and falr view.

Our responsibility is to audit, and express an opinion on, the financlal stalements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Audiling (UK and Ireland), Thosa slandards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit Involves obtaining evidance about the amounts and disclosures In the financlal statements
sufficlent to give reasonable assurance that the financial stalements are free from material misstatemant,
whether caused by fraud or error. Thig includes an assessmant of: whather the accounting policies ara
appropriala to the College's circumstances and have been consistently appliad and adequately disclosed,
the reagonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Corporation; and the overall
presentation of the financial statemants.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Operating and Financlal Review to
identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and 1o idantify any information that is
apparantly materially Incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in
the course of performing the audit, If we beeome aware of any apparent material misalateamants of
inconslstencies, we considar the implications for our report,

Oplinlon on financial statemaents
in our opinian the financial statemanta:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the College’s affairs as at 31 July 2016 and of tha College’s
income and expenditure, gains and losses, changes in resarves and cash flows for the year than
ended; and

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice and with the 2015 Statamant of Recommended Practice = Accounting for Further and
Higher Education.
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Independant Auditor's Report to the Corporation of Brockenhurst College (cont'd)

Mattora on which wa ara requirad to report by axception

We have nothing to report In respect of the following matters where the Joint Audit Code of Praclice (2016)
Issued jointly by the Skills Funding Agency and the Educalion Funding Agency raquires us to repor to you
if, in our opinion:

= adaguate accounting records have not bean kapt by the Colloge; or
= (he Collage financial stalemants are nol in agraamant with the accounting records; or
s wa hava not recelvad all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Signature Lﬂ.fﬁ%ﬁ LA Date 9_] / [ / 70l 6

Victoria Sawall

For and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutoery Auditor

Chartaered Accountanis

Galeway House, Tollgate, Chandlers Ford, Hampshira SO53 3TG
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Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to the Corporation of Brockenhurst
College and the Secretary of State for Education acting through Skills Funding
Agency

In accordance with the tarms of our engagement letter dated 8 Octobar 2015 and further to tha
requirements of the financlal memorandum with Skills Funding Agency we have carrled out an
angagement to obtaln limited assurance about whether anything has come to our attention that would
suggest that In all material respects the expendilure disbursed and income racelved by Brockenhurst
College during the period 1 August 2016 to 31 July 2016 have not been applied to the purposes identified
by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govarn them.

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Joint Audit Code of Practice issued jointly by Skills
Funding Agancy and Education Funding Agency. In line with this framewaork, our work has specifically not
considared income recaived from the main funding granls generated through the Individualisad Learnar
Record (ILR) returns, for which the Skills Funding Agency has other assurance arrangemants in place.

This report is mada solely to the Corporation of Brockenhurst College and the Skills Funding Agency in
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so thal we might state
to the Corporation of Brockenhurst College and Skills Funding Agency those malters we are required 1o
state in a report and for no other purpose, To the fullast axtent permillad by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Corporation of Brockenhurst Collega and Skills Funding
Agency for our worlk, for this rapon, or for the conclusion wa hava formad.

Respactive responsibilities of Brockenhurst Collage and the reporting accountant

The Corporalion of Brockenhurst College is responsible, under the requirements of the Further & Higher
Education Act 1992, subsequent legislation and related regulations and guidanca, for ensuring that
expenditure disbursed and incoma received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the
financial ransactions conform to the authorities which govarn them.

Our responsiblities for this engagement are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our
engagement lelter and the requirements of the Joint Audit Coda of Praclice. We raporl lo you whether
anything has come to our atlention In carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respacts,
expendilure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2015 te 31 July 2016 have nol
been applied to purposes intended by Parlilament or that the financlal transactions do not conform to the
authorilies which govarn tham,

Approach

Wa conducted our engagement in accordance with the Jaint Audit Coda of Praclice issuad jointly by the
Skills Funding Agency and Educalion Funding Agency. We performed a limited agsurance engagement as
definad in that framework.

The objectiva of a limited assurance angagement is to perform such procedures as to ablain information
and axplanations in order to provide us with sulficlent appropriate evidence to express a negative
conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limitad in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to abtaln assurance that wa would become aware of all significant
matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do nol express a
positive oplnion,

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidanca relavant o the regularity of the
college's income and expendilure,
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Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity (continued)

The work undertaken to draw our conclusion Included:

- Documanting the framawork of authorilies which govern the activities of tha College;

. Undartaking a risk assessmant based on our underatanding of the general control environmant
and any waaknassas in internal controls identifiad by our audit of the financial stalemants;

. Reviewing the sell-assessment questionnaire which supports the rapresentations included in the
Chalr of Governors and Accounting Officer's slatamant on regularity, propriety and compliance
with tha framawork of autharities;

Tasling transactions with ralated partios;
Confirming through enquiry and sample testing that the College has complied with its
procuremant pelicies and that these policies comply with delegated authorities; and

. Reviewing any avidence of impropriety resulting from our work and determining whether [t was
significant enough to be referred to in our regularity report.

This list is not exhaustive and we performed additional procedures designed to provide us with
sufficient appropriate evidence to express a limited assurance conclusion on regularily consistent with
the requiramants of the Joint Audil Code of Praclice.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our altention which suggests that in all matarial respacls
the expenditura disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2016 to 31 July 2016 has not
baen appllad to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transaclions do not conform to the
authoritias which govern them.

Signature C—f-é-:b%‘{t'u <2 Date 9_’ / fo / 201

Victorla Sowall

for and on behalf of

KPMG LLP, Reporting Accountant

Gateway House, Tollgate, Chandlers Ford, Hampshire 5053 3TG
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BROCKENHURST COLLEGE
Statement of Comprehensive Income

INCOME

Funding body grants

Tuition feas and educalion conlracts
Othar grants and contracls

Othar Incoma

Endewmant and Invesiment income

Total incama

EXPENDITURE

Siaff cosls

Other aparaling expenses
Dapreciation

Interest and other financa costs

Total axpenditure

(Deficit)/surplus before other gains and losses

Loss on disposal of assets
Gain/(loss) on Invesiments

(Dafleit)/surplus before tax
Taxation
(Deficitysurplus for the year

Actuarlal loss in respect of penslons schemas
Total Comprahanaiva Incoma for tha year

Raprasantad by:
Unrastricted comprehensive income
Restrictod cemprahansive incomae

Surplus for the year atributable to:
Group
Non contralling interest

Motes Year ended 31

% Brockenburst Collere
e

Year ended 31

Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:

Group
Non cantralling Interast

July 2016 July 2018
Collage College

£000 E'000
2 14,910 16,612
a 2,575 3,013
| 0 0
5 2,876 2,818
6 0 3
20,361 21,446
7 12,401 12,906
g 7.151 7.005
11 994 830
10 419 189
20,966 21,930
(604) (484)
11 (4) 0
0 0
(608) (484)
0 0
i1 (608) (484)
22 (2,550) (760)
(3,150) (1,244)
(609) (484)
2,660 (760)
{5.1 59) (1,244)
(3,159) (1,244)
0 0
{3,159) {1,244)
0 0
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BROCKENHURST COLLEGE
Statement of Changes in Reserves

Collage
Restated balance at 1st August 2014

Defieit fram the Income and expenditura account

Other comprahieansiva incoma

Translers batwaen revaluation and income and expenditure
1858IVA5

Balance at 31st July 2018

Deficit from tha income and axpandilure account

Other comprehansive Income

Tranaferas betweon revaluation and Income and expendilura
rosarvas

Total comprehansalve incomae for the year

Balance at 31st July 2016

1&* Brockenhurst Calloge
* L]

Incoma and Revaluation Total
Expenditure  Reserve oxcluding
account Nan
controlling
interast
£'000 £'000 £'000
{2,805) 6,068 4,153
(484) 0 (484)
(760) 0 (760)
160 (150) 0
(1,084) (150) (1,244)
(3,809) 8,808 2.908
(609) 0 (609)
(2,550) 0 (2,650)
151 {151) 4]
(3,008) {151) (3,159)
(6,907) 6,857 (260)
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BROCKENHURST COLLEGE
Balance Sheet as at 31 July

Fixad nssats
Tangible fixed assats

Invastmeants In jolnt vanture
Panslons assel

Currant agsats
Stocks
Trade and other recelvablas

Invasimenis
Cash and cash equivalents

Less: Craditors — amounts falling due within one year

Met currant llabllitios
Total assats leas current labilitios

Less: Craditors — amounis falling dua after more than ona
yaar

Provisions

Dafined banefit obligations
Olher provisions

Total nat assats

Unrestricted reservas
Income and axpendiiure account
Ravaluation resarve

Total unrestricted reserves

Notes

11

12

17

13

14

18
16

College

2016
£'000

22,863

0
0

22,863

a6
829
0
1,126

—_—
1,990

(4,893)

— (zg03)
19,060

(11,372)

(8,730)
{108)

—————

el 220)

(6,908)
6,657

—

— [250)

li- Drockenhins! |:'.HI|L"| it
] * ]

————————

1,687

(4.578)

— (2.891)
18,040

(9,110)

(.920)
(101)

2,009

(3,899)

6,808

—

The financial statements on pages 28 to 53 wera approved and authorised for issue by the Corporation on
20 Navember 2016 and were signed on its behalf on that date by:

G Beards

Aeting Chalr

D Robarts
Accounting Offle
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BROCKENHURST COLLEGE
Statement of Cash Flows

Cash Inflow from operating actlvities
Surplus/(daficit) for the year

Adjustmant for non cash items

Dapraclation

(Increase)idecrease in slocks

(Insrease)decrease In deblors
Increasal{decrease) in craditors due wilthin one year
Increasal{decrease In creditors dua alter one year
Increase/(decrease) in provisions

Pensions cosis less conltributions payabla
Adjustmant for investing or financing activities
Invastmanl incoma

Interast payable

Loss on sale of fixed assels

Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing actlvities
Praceads from sale of fixed assals
Disposal of non-current assel Investments
Invasiment incoma

Withdrawal of deposits

Mew deposits

Paymants made to acquire fixed assels

Cash flows from financing activities

Intarast paid

Interest alement of finance lease rental payments
MNaw unsecurad loans

Repayments of amounts borrowed

Capital element of finance lease rental paymanls

Increase / (decrease) In cash and cash aquivalents in the year

Cash and cash equivalanis at baginning of tha yaar
Cash and cash equivalenis at end of the year

Incrensa/{decroasa)

Motes

17

17

J&‘\ Rrockenbrs College
gt

Restated

2016 2015
E'000 £'000
(608) (484)
994 830

(2) 15
824 427

588 (1,478)
2763 053
6 (8)

260 10

0 (3)

208 158

8 ]
ﬁlﬂdﬂ 421

2 0

0 0

0 3

0 0

0 ]

(2,932) (1,657)
2 EEU 664

(208) (159)

0 0

0 319

(498) (448)

0 0

— e

1 ‘M'lf:l !1|522|
(278) 1,245
1,125 (277)
1,403 {1,522)

Page 31




4@ Arockenhurst College

BROCKENHURST COLLEGE

Notes to the Accounts
1. Statement of accounting policies and estimation techniques

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently In dealing with ltems which are
gonsidered material in relation fo the financlal statements.

Basis of Preparation

These financlal statements have been preparad in accordance with the Statement of Racommanded
Practica: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2015 (the 2015 FE HE SORP), the Collage
Accounis Direction for 2015 te 2016 and In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 - “The
Financial Raporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of lreland” (FRS 102). The
College is a public benefit entity and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS

102,

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certaln critical
accounting estimatas, It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the Collaga's
accounting policies.

Transition to the 2015 FE HE SORP

The College is preparing it financial statements in accordance with FRS 102 for the first time and
consaquently has applied the first time adoption requirements. Soma of th FRS 102 recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements and accounting policy choices diffar from
pravious UK GAAP, Consequently, the Collage has amendad certain accounting policlas to comply with
FRS 102 and the 2015 FE HE SORP. The {rustees have also taken advantage of cartain exemplions from
the requirements of FRS 102 permitted by FRS 102 Chapter 35 ‘Transition to this FRS',

An explanation of how the transilion to the 2015 FE HE SORP has affacted the reported financlal position,
financial parformance and cash flows of the resulls of the College s provided in Nole 26.

The 2015 FE HE SORP requires collegas to prapare a single statemant of comprehansive Income, and not
the alternative prasentation of a separate income siatement and a stalement of other comprehensive
incoma. This represents a change In accounling policy from the previous period when separata
stataments for the Income and Expendilure account and for the Statament of Tatal Recognlsed Gains and

Losses were prasantad,

The application of first time adoption allows carlain exemptions from the full requirements of the FRS 102
and the 2015 FE HE SORP in the transition period. The following exemptions hava baan taken in these
financial statements:

« Ravaluation as deamad cost = as at 1" August 2014, the College has retained the carrying valuas of
freehold propertias praviously held at fair valua using the valuation undertaken at 2012 as being
deamed cost

Basia of Accounting

Tha financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention as madilied by the
use of previous valuations as deemed cost at transition for certain non-current assels,

Goling concarn

The activities of the Callage, together with the factors likely to affect ils fulure davelopmant and
performance are set out in the Strategic Report. The financial pesition of the College, ita cashflow, liquidity
and barrowings are described in the Financial Statements and accompanying Notes.

The financial statements have been preparad on tha going concern basis, which the Corporation believes
to be appropriate on the basis set out balow.

During 2016/16 the bank has continued to support the College subject lo its Implementing and delivaring
the financial recovary plan. The College’s 2015/16 covenants have both have bean met.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

Projectad cash flow information has baen prepared for the period ending twelve months from the date of
the approval of these financial statements. This indicates that the College will have a maximum cash
raquiremant of £1,5m during March 2017, Tha bank has confirmed that it is willing lo axtend the Collage’s
averdraft facilities o a level which will be sufficient to meat this shorl-term peak requirement.

On the basia of the College's current recovary plan, the Corporation are satisfied that the covenants will be
met for the year to 31 July 2017 and that therefore the loan facility and overdrafl should be available to the
College for at least tha next 12 months from the date of approval of these financlal statements.

Recagnition of Income

Government revenue grants include funding body recurrant grants and other grants are accounted for
under the aceruals modal as permitted by FRS 102. Funding body recurrent grants are measured in line
with best estimates for the period of what is receivable and depend on the particular income siream
invalved. Any under- or over-achievement for the Adult Skills Budget is adjusted for and raflactad In the
level of recurrent grant recognised in the income and expenditura account. Tha final grant income Is
normally determined with the conclusion of the year-and reconciliation process with the funding body
following the year end, and the results of any funding audits. 16-18 learner-rasponsiva funding is not
normally subject to reconclliation and is therefore nol subject to contracl adjustmants.

The recurrent grant from HEFCE represents tha funding allocations altributable to the current financial
year and is credited direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Grants (Including research grants) from non-government sources are racognised in income when the
Gollaga Is entitled to the income and parformance-related conditions have been mat. Incoma received in
advance of performance-related conditions being mat is recognised as deferred incoma within credilors on
the balance sheet and released to income as the conditions are met.

Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised in income over tha
expactad useful life of the asset, under the accruals method as permitted by FRS 102. Other capllal grants
are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the funds, subject to any performance-related
conditions baing met,

Income from tuition feas s stated gross of any axpendilura which is not a discount, and is racognised in
the period for which It Is received,

Accounting for post-employmant benefits

Post-amplayment benefils to employees of the Collage are principally provided by the Teachers’ Pension
Scheme (TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are dafined benefil plans,
which are extarnally funded and contracted out of the State Second Pansion.

The TPS Ia an unfunded scheme. Cenlributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the coat of
pensions over employees' working lives with the College in such a way that the pansion costis a
substantially level percentage of currant and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined
by qualified actuaries on tha basis of valuations using a prospeclive benefit method, The TPS is a multi-
employer schama and the Collage is unable to Identify its share of the underlying assels and liabllitlas of
the schama on a consistent and reasonable basis, The TPS is therefore treated as a dafinad contribution
plan and tha contributions recognised as an expense in the income statement in the periods during which
sarvices are rendered by employees.

The LGPS is a funded schema. The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values. LGPS
linbilities ara measurad using the projected unit cradit method and discountad at the current rate of return
an a high quality corporate bond of aquivalant term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations
are obtalned af least triennially and ara updated at each balanca shaet date. The amounts charged to
operaling surplus are the currant service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes,
sefllaments and curtallments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the nat
defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised In the Statement of Comprehensive Income and comprises
the Interast cast an the definad banafit obligation and interest income on the scheme assats, calculated by
multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount
the benafit obligations. The difference batwean the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual
relurn on the scheme assets is recognised In other recognised gains and losses,
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Notes to tha Accounts (continued)

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
Short-term Employment benefits

Short-term employment benafits such as salaries and compansated absences (holiday pay) are
racognised as an expanse In the year in which the employaas render service to the College. Any unusead
benefils are accrued and measured as the additional amount the Collaga axpects to pay as a result of the
unugad antitlemant,

Enhanced Pensions

The actual cost of any enhanced ongolng pension te a former member of staff is paid by a college
annually. An estimale of the expected future cost of any enhancement to the ongoing pension of a former
member of staff is chargad in full ta the Collage's income in the year that the member of staff retires. In
subsequent years a charge is made to provisions In the balance sheel using the enhanced pension
spreadsheat provided by the funding bodies.

Tanglble Fixed Assets
Land and Buildings

Land and bulldings inherited from the Local Education Authority and buildings consiructed since
incarporation are stated in the balance sheet at valuation on the basis of depreciated replacement cost as
the opan market value for existing use is not readily obtainable, The associaled credit is included in the
ravaluation reserve. The difference belwaen dapreciation charged on the historlc cost of assets and the
actual charge for the year calculated on the revalued amount is released to the income and axpenditura
account raserve on an annual basis. Fraehold land is not depreciated. Fraehold buildings are depraciated
over the oxpected useful aconomic life to the College of betwean 16 and 50 years. The College has a
policy of depreciating major adaplations to buildings over the peried of thelr useful economic life.
Leasehald land and bulldings are amortised over the period of the |ease.

Whare land and buildings are acquirad with the aid of specific grants, they are capilalised and depraciated
as above, The related granis are credited to a deferred capital grant account, and are reloased to the
income and expenditure account over the expactad useful economic life of the related assel on a basis
consistent with the depreciation paolicy.

Finance costs which are directly attributable to the construction of land and buildings, are not capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets,

A raview for impairment of a fixed assel is carrlad out if events or changes In circumstances Indicate that
the carrying amount of the fixad asset may not be recoverable.

Subsequent expenditure on axisting fixed assats

Where significant expenditure is incurrad on tangible fixed assats It Is charged to the Income and
axpanditura account in the period it is Incurred, unless it meeis one of the following eritaria, In which case it
|s capitalised and dapreciatad on the ralevant basis:

+ Market valua of the fixed asset has subsequently improvad

+ Assel capacity Increases

+ Substantial improvemant in the quality of oulpul or reduction in operaling costs

+ Significant extension of the asset's life beyond that confarrad by repairs and maintenance

Equipmant
Equipment costing less than £500 per Individual item except computer PCs and laptops are wrilten off to

the Income and expendilure account In the period of acquisition. All other aguipment is capitalised at cost.
Equipment inherited from tha Local Education Authority Is included in the balance shaat at valuation.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

Inherited equipmant has been depreciated on a straight-line basis over ils remaining useful aconomic life
to the College of between three and eight years from incorporation and Is now fully depreciated. All other
equipment Is depraciated on a siraight-line basis over its useful economic life as follows:

+ Motor vehicles & yaara
«  Equipmant B years
+« Computer equipmant 4 yoars

Where equipment is acquired with the aid of specific grants, It Is capitalised and depreciated in accordance
with the abova policy, with the related grant being credited to a deferred governmental capital grant
account within creditors and released to the Income and expenditure account over the expacted useful
aconomic life of the related equipment.

Laasad Assats

Cosla In respect of operating laases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term. All leases
inheritad from the Local Education Authorlty have been treated as operating lonses to be consistent with
thair policy before transfer to the Collage.

Leasing agreements which transfer to the College substantially all the benefils and risks of ownership of
an asset ara freated as if the asset had been purchased oulright and are capitalised at their fair value at
the Inception of the lease and depraciated over the shorter of the lease term or the useful economic lives
of aquivalently ewned assets. The capital element outstanding is shown as obligations under finance
loases,

The finance charges are allocated over the period of the lease in proportion to the capital element
outstanding. Where finance lease payments are funded in full from funding council capital aquipment
grants, the associated assets are designated as grant funded assets.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of thelr cost and net realisable value. Where necessary, provision is made
for obsolale, slow-moving and defeclive slocks.

Foralgn Currancy Translation

Transactions denominalad In foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the dale
of the lransaction. Monatary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencles are translated at the
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the financial period with all resulting exchange dilferences balng
taken to the income and expenditure account in the period in which they arlse,

Taxatlon

The Collega Is considered to pass the tasts set out in paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and
tharefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
College is potentially exampt from taxation in respecl of incoma or capital gains raceivad within catagories
coverad by Chapter 3 Part 11 Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 2566 of the Taxation of Chargeable
Gains Act 1992, to the extant that such income or gains are applied to exclusivaly charitable purposes.

The Collage is partially exempt In respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover a minor element
of VAT chargad on its inputs. Irrecoverabla VAT on Inputs is included in the costs of such inpuls and
added to the cost of tangible fixed assets as apprapriate, where tha inputs themselves are tangible fixed
assels by nature, Non-pay expenditure |s therefore shown inclusive of VAT with any parlial racovary
natted off against thesa figures.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

Liguld Resources
Liguid resources include sums on short term deposits with recognised banks.
Provislons

Provisions are recognised when the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past avent, il is probable that a transfer of economic benafit will be required {o setlle the obligation and a
raliable estimata can be made of the amount of the cbligation.

Agency Arrangements

The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of Discrationary Support Funds. Related
payments received from the funding bodies and subsequent disbursamants to students are excluded from
the incoma and expanditure of the College, except for the 5% of the grant received which Is available to
the College to cover administration costs relating to the grant. The college employs one member of staff
dedicated to the administration of Learner Support Fund applicalions and payments.

Judgaments In Applying Accounting Pelicies and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
In praparing these financial statements, managemant have made the following judgements:

+ Determine whather leases enterad into by the College either as a lessor or a lessee are operaling or
finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a leasa by lease basis.

+  Determine whather there ara indicators of impairment of the group's tangible assets, including
goodwill. Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the aconomic viability
and expacted fulure financial parformance of the asset and where it is a component of a larger cash-
generaling unit, the viability and expected fulure performanca of that unit.

Othar kay sources of astimation uncertainty

= Tanglble fixed assats

Tanglble fixed assets, other than investment proparties, are depreciated over thelr useful lives taking
into account residual values, whara appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are
assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In re-assessing asset livas,
faclors such as technological innovation and maintenance programmas are taken inlo account.
Rasidual value assessments consider Issues such as future market conditions, tha remaining life of
the asset and projected disposal values,

« [local Govarnmant Pension Schamaé

Tha prasant value of the Local Governmant Penslon Scheme definad benefit liability depeands on a
number of factors that are datermined on an actuarial basis using a varialy of assumptions, The
assumplions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions Includa the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumplions, which are disclosed in Note 22, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects rasults from the latest full
actuarlal valuation performed at 31 March 2013 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions
liabllity at 31 July 2016. Any differences batwaen the figures derived from the roll forward approach
and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the earrying amount of the pension liability.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

2  Funding body grants

Recurrant grants

Skills Funding Agency

Edueation Funding Agency

Higher Education Funding Council
Spaocific Grants

Skills Funding Agency

Eduecation Funding Agency

Raleases of governmenl capital grants
HE grant

Total

3  Tuition fees and educatlon contraats

Adult aducation faas

Apprenticeship fees and contracts
Faes for FE loan supported courses
Feos for HE loan supported coursas
Europaan (excluding UK) students
International students fees

Tolal tultion faes

Education conlracla

Tatal

4 Other granta and contracts

Erasmus

UK-baged charitles
Europsan Commission
Other grants and contracts

Total

Drockenhiurs! Colloge

Yaoar anded 31 Year andad 31
July July

2016 2015

College Collage

£'000 E'000

1,242 1,677

11,859 12,212

49 g

1,340 1,493

177 50

143 171

14 910 15,612

Yaar andad 31 Year ended 31
20186 2015

Collage Collage

£'000 £'000

805 664

a3 41

100 217

a1 165

B2 65

1,098 1,282

2,217 2,434

asa 570
J J
Yaar ended 31 Year onded 31
201G 2015

Callaga Caollege

£'000 £'000

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

i] 0
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

§ Other incoma

Catering and rasldances

Other Incomea generaling aclivities

Othar grant Incoma

MNon gavarnmant capltal grants

Releases fram defarrad capital grants (non Funding Body)
Miscallanaous incoma

Total

& Investment incema

Othar Invastmaent incama
Other intarast recelvable

Total

&! Arockenbirsl l::n|||:1 jit
1t

Year
2016

Collage
£'000

372
718
158
0

0
1,628

—————

—810,

Yaar
2016
Caollege
£'000

1]

I

Yaonr
2015

Collage
E'000

393
672
94

0

0
1,650

2,81

Yoar
2015

College
£'000

0

3

3
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

7 Staff costa - Group and Collage

Tha average number of persens (including key management personnel) employed by the College
during the year, describad as full-time aquivalents, was;

Taaching staff
Non teaching staff

Staff costs for the abovae persons

Wages and salarles

Social securily cosls

Olher panslon costs

Payroll sub total

Contracted out staffing services

Fundamental restructuring cosls -

Key managemant parsonnal

2016 2015

Mo, No.

172 199

168 158

ﬂﬂﬂ 355

2016 2015

E'00D £'000

0,998 10,818

725 700

(note 8) 1,500 1,346
12,313 12,864

as 132

12,401 12,096

contractual - -
non contractual - ®
12,401 12|WB

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and contralling the activities of the College and are reprasented by the College Leadership Team which
comprises the Princlpal, Vice Principal, Depuly Principal Direclor of Finance. Staff cosls include
compansation paid lo key management personnel for loss of office.

Emoluments of Key management personnal, Accounting Officer and other higher pald staff

2016

Ne.

The number of key managemant parsonnal including the Accounting 3
Officer was:

2015
No,
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

B  Stalf costs - Group and Collage

Tha number of kay management personnel and other staff who received annual emolumaents,
axcluding pension conlributions but Including benefits in kind, in the following ranges was:

Key managemant Other staff
parsennal
2016 2015 2016 2015
No. No. No. No.
£80,001 1o £00,000 p.a. 2 1 0 0
£90,001 to £120,000 p.a. 1 1 0 0
3 0 0

Key management parsonnel emoluments are made up as follows:

2018 2015

£'000 E'onn

Salarias 282 264
Banefits in kind 3 4
285 258

Pension contributiona 43 36
Total amolumants Eig 294

There were ne amounis dug to key managemant personnel that wera waived in the year, nor any
salary sacrifice arrangements in place. The above emolumenis include amounts payable to the
Accounting Officer (wha is also the highest paid officer) of:

2018 2015

£'000 £'000

Salaries 112 112
Baenafils in kind 1 1
113 i E

Panslon conlributions 18 18

Thera was no compansalion paid for loss of office to former key managemant parsonnal

The members of the Corporation other than the Accounting Officer and the stalf membars did nol
recelva any payment from the institulion other than the reimbursemaent of travel and subsistence
axpenses incurred in the coursa of their duties,
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

8 Othor operating expenses

Teaching costs
Mon teaching cosls
Framises cosis

Total

Other operating expenses Includa:

Auditors’ remunaration:

Financial stalements audit

Internal audit

Other services provided by the financlal statemants auditors
Oiher services provided by the intarnal audilors

Losses on disposal of tangibla fixed assats (whare not malerial)
Hira of assal under operating leasas

10 Interest payable College

On bank loans, overdrafls and other loans;

Pension finance cosls (note 22)

Total

J&? Mrockenhual College
1t

Yoar Yoar
2016 2016
Collage Collage
£'000 £'000
2,966 3,307
2,684 2,885
1,501 1I?13
‘il'l“l 51 ilﬁ!&
2016 2015
£'000 £'000
21 31

0 0

0 0

13 12

0 0

484 631
ee———— L
2016 2015
E'000 E'DDD
209 15£
208 158
210 A0
&12 199
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

11 Tanglble fixed assets

Land and bulldings

@ Broackenhumsi Colleg

Equipment Asseis in the Total
Courso of
Construction

Frecheld Leng
leasahold

E'000 £'000 £'000 E'000 £000
Cost or valuation
At1 August 2015 21,086 81 5,202 0 27,268
Addltions 2,940 3 82 0 3,025
Disposals (269) (238) (263) 0 (770)
At 31 July 2016 23,756 746 5,021 0 20,623
Dapraciation
Al1 August 2015 1,844 525 3,968 0 6,337
Charge for the year 547 55 39z 0 994
Elimination In respact of disposals (161) {238) (272) 0 {G71)
At 31 July 2016 2,230 342 4,088 0 6,660
Net book value at 31 July 2016 21,526 404 833 0 22,863
Met book value at 31 July 2015 19,241 458 1,234' 1] znigm

Land and bulldings were re-valuad in 2012 at depreciated replacement cost by a firm of independent charlared
survayors. The value of tha land Includad In abova la £1,000,000. Othar tangibla fixed assels inherited from the
LEA at Incorporation have bean valued by the College on a deprecialed replacement cosl basia.

If fixed assets had not been revalued they would have been included al the lallawing histarical cost amounts:

Cosl
Aggragate depraclation based on cost

Mol book value based on cost

£000
25,802
(9,432)

16,370
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

12 Debtors

Amounts falling due within one yaar:

Trada racelvables

Amounis owed by group undertakings:
Prepayments and acorued income

Amounis owed by the Skills Funding Agency/EFA

Total

13 Crediters: amounts falling due within one year

Bank loans and overdralls

Trade payables

Olher taxalion and social sacurity

Accruals and deferrad Income

Defarred Incamea - governmant capltal grants
Amounis owed to the Skills Funding Agency/EFA

Total

14 Creditora: amounts falling due after ene year

Bank [oans
Othar Loans
Deferred Incoma - govarnment capltal grants

Total

Collage
2016
£'000

577

262

I —

—i2

Collage
2016
£'000

650G
653
423
2,754
239
318

4,893

College
2016
£'000
3,083
1891
8,088

11,372

.

1&‘( Brockenhust College
2l

Collage
2015
£'000

485

1.168

1,656

College
2015
E'000

775
2,21
396
as7
143
182

4,574

:

Collage
2015
£'000

3,464
337
5319

:
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

15 Maturity of dabt
(a) Bank leans and ovardrafts

Bank loans and everdraflls ara rapayable as follows:

Collage College

2016 2018

£'000 E'000

In one yaar or lass 506 77a
Between one and lwo years 833 052
Belwaen two and five years 1,536 1,260
In fiva years or more 816 1,678
Total 3,790 4,566

The bank loan Is repayable by installmants falling due between 1 August 2016 and 31 December 2025.
The bank covenants have been reviewed In line with the recovery plan, and have been mel during 2015/16.
Tha IBM lean was drawn down an 31 July 2015 ie repayable by Installments ovar 5 years.

The bank loans are securad on the collage properly excluding the sports hall.

(b} Finance laases

The College does nol have any finance lease obligalions

16 Provislons

Defined Enhanced Othar Tatal
banofit pansions
Obligations Restructuring

£'000 £'000 E'000 £'000 £'000

At 1 August 2015 (5,920) 0 (101} 0 (6,021)
Expendilura in tha pariod (570) 0 (&) a (576}
Raductlons In pariod (2,240) 0 0 0 (2,240)
At 31 July 2016 (8,730) 0 (108) 0___(8.838)

Dafinad banafit obligations relate to the liabilities under the Callege's membarship of the Local Gavernmant
pension Schema, Further datalls are given in Nota 25.

The enhanced pension provision relates to the cost of staff who have already left the Collage’s amploymant
and commitments for reorganization costs from which the College cannot reasonably withdraw al tha balance
shael dale. This provision has been recalculated in accordance with guidance issued by the funding bodies.

Tha principal assumptions for this caloulation ara:

2016 2015
Prica inflafion 2.0% 3.2%
Discounl rata 2.4% 3.6%

Page 44




Notes to the Accounts (continued)

17 Cash and cash agulvalants

J&* Brockenhumt Collocge
A

At 1 August Cash Other At 31 July
2018 flows changes 2016
E'00D £'000 E'000 £'000
Cash and cash aquivalants (278) 278 1,125 1,125
Overdrafts (488) 408 0 0
Loans (3,700) 0 0 (3,790)
Total {J,SBQ) 776 1,125 ‘Zlﬂﬁﬂl
18 Caplital commitmenis
Collage
2016
E'000
Commilments contracted for at 31 July ——r

18 Lease Obligations

Al 31 July the Collage had minimum lease payments under non-cancallable operaling leases as follows:

Future minimum lease paymants due

Land and buildings

Not later than one yaar

Later than ona year and not laler than five years
later than five years

Other

Mot latar than ona year

Later than ene year and not later than flve years
later than five yaars

20 Contingant liabilities
There are no contingent liabilities

21 Evaonts after the reporting pariod

College Collago
2016 2015
£'000 £'000
as 17

113 aa

- 297

151 352

375 294

G64 632

6 i
J J

There ara no events after he reporting period that have a material impact on the College's results,
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

22 Definad benafit obligations

The College's employees belong to two principal post-employment benefit plans: the Teachars’ Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Wessex Local Government Penslon
Schome (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Aon Hewitt Limited. Both are multi-employer
definad-banafit plans,

Total pension cost for the year 2018 2016
£'000 £'000

Teachers Pension Schema: contributions pald 916 846

Local Gavarnmant Panalon Schema:

Contributions paid 725 530

FRS 102 (28) charge (50) (30)

Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income G675 500

Total Pension Cost for Year within staff costs (note 8) 1,590 1,346

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest
formal actuarial valuation of the TPS was 31 March 2012 and of tha LGPS 31 March 2013,

Contributions amounting to £192,206 (2015 £178,895 ) were payable to the scheme and are included in
craditors.

Teachers' Penslon Schame

The Teachers' Pansion Scheme (TPS) is a stalutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010, and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations
2014. These regulations apply lo leachers in schoals and other educational establishments, including
academias, in England and Wales that are maintained by local authorilies. In addition, teachers In many
independent and voluntary-aided schaols and teachers and leclurers in soma aestablishments of further and
higher education may be eligible for membership. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers and lecturers
and, from 1 January 2007, automatic too for teachers and lecturers in part-time employment following
appointment or a change of contract, Teachers and lecturars ara able o opt aut of tha TPS.

The Teachers' Pension Budgeting and Valuation Accouit

Althaugh teachers and lecturers are amployed by various bodies, thalr retiremant and other pension benafits,
including annual increases payable under the Pensions (Increase) Acts are, as provided for in the
Superannuation Act 1972, paid out of monies provided by Pardiament. Under the unfunded TPS, teachers'
contributions on a 'pay-as-you-go' basis, and employars’ contributions, are credited to the Exchequer under
arrangaemants governad by the above Acl.

The Teachers' Pensions Regulations raguira an annual aecount, the Teachers' Pension Budgeting and
Valuation Account, to be kapt of receipts and expenditure (including the cost of penslons’ increases). From 1
April 2001, the Account has been crediled with a real rate of return which Is equivalent to assuming that the
balance in the Account |s invested in notional investments that produce that real rate of raturn.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

Valuation of the Teachers® Pension Schema

Tha iatest actuarial review of the TPS was carrled oul as at 31 March 2012 and in accerdance with The Public
Sarvica Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014, The valuation raport was publishad by
the Dapartment for Educalion (the Daparimant) on 9 June 2014. Thae key results of the valualion are:

amployar conlributlon rates were set al 16.48% of pensionable pay,

total scheme liabilities for sarvica o tha offeclive date of £191.5 billion, and nolional assels of

£178.6 billion, glving a notional past servica daficit of £14.9 billion;

an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pansionable pay.

Tha naw amployer contribution rata for the TPS will be Implemented in September 2016.

A full copy of the valuation reporl and supporting decumentation can be found on the Teachers’ Pension
Scheme wabsite al the following locatlon:
hitps://www.teacharspensions.co.uk/news/amployars/2014/06/publication-of-the-valuation-report.aspx

Schame Changes

Following the Hutton report in March 2011 and the subsequent consultations with trade unions and other
representative bodies on reform of the TPS, the Departmant published a Proposed Final Agraemant, selling out
the design for a reformed TPS to be implamented from 1 April 2015.

The key provisions of the reformad scheme include: a panslon based on career average aarnings; an acerual
rate of 1/57th; and a Normal Pension Age aqual lo State Pension Age, but with options to enable members (o
ratire aarlier or later than thelr Normal Pension Age. Importantly, pension benafils bullt up before 1 April 2015
will be fully protactad,

In addition, the Proposad Final Agresmaent includes a Government commilment that thosa within 10 years of
Normal Panslon Age on 1 April 2012 will see no change fo the age at which thay can relire, and no dacraase in
the amount of pension they recalve when they retire. There will also be further iransltional protection, laparad
avar a three and a half vear period, for paople who would fall up to three and a half years outside of tha 10 year
protaction,

Regulations giving effect to a reformed Teachers' Pension Scheme came Into force on 1 April 2014 and the
raformad scheme commancad on 1 April 2016,

The pension cosls pald lo TPS in the year amounted to £815,000 (2015: £846,000)
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

22 Defined benefit obligations (continued)
FRS 102 (28)

Under the definitions set oul in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS Is a mulll-employer pension scheme. The
Callege is unable to identily its share of the underlylng assels and liabliitias of the schama.

Accordingly, the Collage has taken advantaga of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for
its contributions to the scheme as If it were a defined-contribution plan. The College has sel oul
above the infermation avallable on the plan and the implications for the College in terms of the
anticipated contribulian rates.

Lacal Gevarnmant Pension Schame

The LGPS is a funded definad-benefit plan, with the assels held in separate funds adminsterad by
Hampshire Local Authorilty . The tolal contribution made for the year ended 31 July 2016 was
£0.74m, of which employer's contributions lotalled £0.57m and employees’ conlributions totallad
£0.17m. The agreed conlribution rates for future years are 17.3% for employers and ranga from
5.5% to 7.6% for employeas, depanding on salary.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

The fallowing information Is based upen a full actuarial valualion of the fund at 31 March 2012
updataed to 31 July 2018 by a qualified independent acluary
At 31 July At 31 July

2016 2015
Rate of Increase in salarles 3.3% 3.6%
Fulure penslons Increases 1.8% 21%
Discount rate for schama liabllitles 2.4% 3.6%
Inflation assumption (CP1) 1.8% 21%
Commulation of penslons to lump sums 0.0% 0.0%

The current mortality assumplions include sufficient allowanca for future improvements in martality
rates. The assumed life axpectalions on retirement age 65 are:
At31Jduly  At31 July

2016 2015
yaurs years
Ratiring foday
Malas 24.6 24,5
Famalas 26.4 26.3
Ralirlng in 20 years
Malas 26.7 26.8
Famalos 20.7 28.6

Page 48




Notes to the Accounts (continued)

22 Defined banafit obligations (continuad)
Loaal Government Pansion Schame (Cantinuad)

% Brockenhumsl Collage
o

Thae amount includad In the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan Is as

follows:

Fair valug of plan assels
Frasent value of plan llabllitles

Net penslons liabllity (Note 16)

2016 2018
£'000 E'000
12,480 10,670
(21,210) (16,500)
(8,730) (5,920)

Amounts racognised In the Statement of Comprehensive Income In respect of the plan are as

follows:

Amounts included In staff costs
Currant service cost

Past service cost

Total

Amounts included in investmant incoma
Nat interest income

Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Raturn on pansion plan assats

Experience lossas arising on defined benefit obligations
Changes in assumplions underlying the present value of plan

liabilitias
Amount recegnised in Other Comprehansive Incoma

2016 2015
£'000 £'000
620 500

0 0

820 500
(210) (40)
(210) [40)
980 480
(3,630) (1,240)
0 0
‘Z|HEI}I 760
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

22 Defined benefit obligations (eontinued)

Local Government Pension Schema (Continuad)

Movement in net defined benaefit {liability/asset during the year

Surplus/(daficit) in schamae at 1 August
Movemant in year:
Currant sorvica cost
Employar conlribulions
Past sarvico cost
Met interast on tha dafined {liability)/assat
Actuarlal galn or loss
Neat defined benefit (liability)/asset at 31 July

Assot and Liability Reconciliation

Changes In the prasant value of definad benefit abligations

Definad banafit obligations at start of period

Current Service cost

Intarast cost

Conlribulions by Schama participants

Experiance gains and losses on defined benefit obligations
Changes in financial assumplions

Eslimatad banefita pald

Past Sarvice cost

Curtallmants and salllemantsa

Definad banefit obligations at end of perlad
Reconciliation of Aasets

Falr value of plan assets at start of paried
Interast on plan assels

Return on plan assels

Employer contributions

Contributions by Scheme participanis
Estimatad banefila pald

Assets at end of period

J'%& Brockanhiimst Collegs
] o

2016 2015
E'000 £'000
(5,020) (5,150)
(820) (600)
570 530

0 0
(210) (40)
_(2850) __ (760)
(8,730) (5,920)
2,016 2,018
E'000 £'000
18,500 14,340
620 500
@00 610
170 160
3,530 1,240
0 0
(300) (260)
0 0

0 0
21,210 16,590
10,670 9,190
390 570
080 480
570 530
170 160
(300) (260)
Hiiﬂg 1 EIB?'D
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23 Related party transactions

J@. Brockenhursd Colledge
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Owing to the nature of the College's operations and the composition of the board of
governors being drawn from local public and private sector organisafions, it is inevitable that
transaclions will take place with organisalions In which 8 member of the board of governors
may have an interest, All transaclions involving such organisations are conducted at arm's
langth and In accordance with the Collage’s financlal ragulalions and normal procuremaent

Wessex Shared Services Limited - a joint venture of Brockenhurat Collage

Transactions in the year amounted lo - Sales £2 524,505 and Purchases £1,058,145

Share of assels
Sharae of fixed assels
Shara of current assels

Shara of llabllitles
Shara of currant liabllities
Share of pension liability

Share of net liabilitias

24 Amounts disbursed as agent

Learner support funds

Funding body grants - bursary support

Funding body granta — discrationary learnar support
Funding body grants — residential bursaries

Other Funding body grants

Interest earnad

Disbursad to studants
Adminisiralion costs
Balance unspent

Balance unspent as at 31 July, indluded in craditors

Yoor ended  Year ended
2016 20186
£'000 £'000
25 30
80 a8
105 118
{123) (131)
{1 Al 3} (?‘I ?)
{1,536) (848)
i1 t431! 730
2016 2015
£'000 E'0D0
404 arn
17 127
104 B0
625 557
(487) (300)
(19) (21)
(37) -
102 146
—

Funding body grants are available sclely for students, In the majorily of instances, the
Collaga only acls as a paying agent. In these cireumstances, the grants and related
disbursements are therefore excluded from the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

26 Transition to FRS 102 and the 2016 FE HE SORP

The year ended 31st July 2016 is the first year that the College has presented its financlal statements under FRS 102
and the 2015 FE HE SORP. The following disclosures are required in the year of transition. The last financial
statements prepared under previous UK GAAP were for the year endad 31st July 2015 and the date of transition 1o
FRS 102 and the 2015 FE HE SORP was therefore 1st August 2014, As a consequence of adopting FRS 102 and
Ihe 2015 FE HE SORP, a numbar of accounting policles have changed o comply with these slandards.

An axplanation of how the transition to FRS 102 and the 2015 FE HE SORP has affected tha College's financial
position, financlal performance and cash flows, 18 set out balow,

Note st August 2014 Hst July 2015

College Collage
£'000 E'000

Financlal Poslitlon

Total reserves under previous SORP 4,189 2,845
Employas leave accrual - 844 = 844
Ralease of non-governmaent capital grants 208 808
Changes to measuramant of net finance cost on defined benafit plans - -
Total effect of transition to FRS 102 and 2018 FE HE SORP - 36 . 36
Total resarves under 2016 FE S5ORP 4,153 <909

Year anded 31st July 2015

College

£'000
Financlal Performance
Deflcit for the year after tax under prévious SORP . 484
Release of non-govarnmant grants received
Raversal of capilal grants amorisalion -
Paensions provision — acluarial loss . 760
Changes to measurement of net finance cost on defined benefil plans .
Total effect of transition to FRS 102 and 2016 FE HE SORP . 160
Total comprahensive Ingome for the year under 2015 FE HE SORP - 1,204
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

26 Transition to FRS 102 and the 2015 FE HE SORP
a} Recognitlon of short term employment benefits

Mo provislon for short term employment benefils such as hollday pay was made under the provious UK GAAP,
Undar FRS 102 the costas al shorl-lerm amployae benafils are recognised as a liabllity and an expansa. The
annual lsava year runs to 31st August sach year for both teaching and non-teaching staff meaning that, at the
raporling data, thara was an average of 18 days unused leava for leaching stafl and 10 days unused leave for non-
teaching staff, Non-teaching amployeas are not antitled to carry forward unused holiday entitlement at the end of
tha leava year. The cosl of any unused entillament is recognised in the period in which the amployea’s servicas are
racalvad, An accrual of £844k was racognisad at 1 August 2014, and E784k at 31 August 2016, Following a re-
measurement axercise in 2016/16, the mavemenlt an this provision of £E60k has been credited to Comprahansive
Income In the year ended 31 July 2016,

b) HNen-govaernment granis accounted for under performance modal

Tha College has previously bean in recaipt of certaln capital grants from sources other than those classiflad as
"governmant” under FRS 102 and the 20156 FE HE SQRP, Under tha pravious UK GAAP and 2007 SORP, thase
wara able (o be capitallsed and ameorlisad over the ramalning uselul aconomic lifa of tha relavant fixed assela, This
accounting treatment is no longar availabla for non-government grants and the granis have therefore been
accountad for under tha parformance modal and treatad as il thay had baen eradiled to Comprehensive Incoma
immediately that the porformance conditions had bean mat, A corrasponding adjusiment has been made to the
incoma recognisad in tha 2015 rasults thal related te the annual amortisation of the capltal granta Involvad

g} Changa in recognition of definad banafit plan finance costa

The nel pansion finance cost recognised in the Income and Expandilure account for the year ended 31st July 2015
under the provious UK GAAP was the not of the expected relurn on pension plan assels and the interest on
pansion llabililes. FRS 102 raquires tha racagnition In tha Statament of Comprehansive Income, of a nat Interast
cosl, calculatad by mulliplying the net plan obligations by the market yleld on high qualily corporate bands (the
discount rate applied). The change has had ne effect on net assels as the measurament of tha net defined banafit
plan abligation has nat changed. Instead, the decrease In the surplus for the year has bean mirrored by a raduetion
In the actuarial losses prasented within Other Comprehansiva Income

d) Presentation of actuarial gains and losses within Total Comprahensive Income
Acluarial gains and losses on lhe College's defined banafil plans were praviously presentad in the Statement of
Total Racognlaad Galns and Losses (STRGL), a separate statemant to the Incoma and Expenditure account, All

such gains and losses are now required under FRS 102 to be presented within the Statement of Comprehansive
Incoma, as movemants In Othar Comprehansive Incoma.
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